1		CITY OF COLLEGE PARK	
2		MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL	
3		WORKSHOP SESSION	
4		AUGUST 7, 2023	
5			
6		<u>MINUTES</u>	
7			
8			
9	Present:	Mayor Bianca Motley Broom; Councilmen Ambrose Clay, Joe Carn, Ken Allen	
10		and Roderick Gay; City Manager Stanley Hawthorne; City Attorney Winston	
11		Denmark; City Clerk Shavala Ames	
	A la a aut.		
12	Absent:	None	
13	Mayor Motley	y Broom called the workshop session to order at 5:01 p.m.	
14 15 16	ACTION:	Councilman Clay moved to take up executive session to discuss real estate, litigation, and cyber security at 5:02 p.m., seconded by Councilman Carn and motion carried by those present. <i>Councilman Gay was absent</i> .	
17 18	The workshop	session reconvened at 6:09 p.m.	
19 20 21		OTLEY BROOM: Good evening. We are back for our workshop session, and we of items on the agenda. We are ready to begin here at 6:09 p.m.	
22	1 State	of the Health Industry in the South Metropolitan Area presentation by	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
23		nel Carnathan, Research/Analysis Manager at the Atlanta Regional nission.	
24	Comi	MISSION.	
25	MANOD MO		
26 27	health industr	OTLEY BROOM: The first item on the workshop session agenda is state of the y in the South Metro area by Mike Carnathan, the research analysis manager at the	
28	Atlanta Regio	anal Commission. Good evening. Good to see you.	
29			
30	MR. CARNA	THAN: Good to see you. How's everybody? I was supposed to lean into this mic;	
31	is that correct	?	
32			
33	MAYOR MO	TLEY BROOM: Yes, sir.	
34			
35	MR. CARNA	THAN: Thank you for having me today. Again, my name is Mike Carnathan, and I	
36	am the manager of the research and analytics group at the Atlanta Regional Commission. And I		
37	am here to give you a brief presentation just about, sort of, public health landscape. So, I am		
38	_	a brief presentation about the overall health landscape in the Atlanta region. Of	
39		going to include South metro as well. And what I'm going to do is I'm really going	
40		y about the public health landscape, because that's the way we need to think about	
41		solutions we may need for public health because it is a systemic issue. And so, we	
42	• •	broadly and systemically about that.	

And so, those are the things I'm going to be talking about, specifically -- well, really, it's going to boil down to four things. The first thing is depending on our race and depending on place, leaning, where we live, we are having very different experiences in this region in terms of interacting with the healthcare system. And we have very different needs from the healthcare system. The second thing is, if you look at health disparities, it's producing very different outcomes. And, again, this is going to be centered in race and place. Third thing that I'll talk about is, if you think about what makes us healthy, or what makes us unhealthy, it really comes down to a lot of what happens outside of doctor's office, outside of a hospital, outside of an ER. And it's these so-called social determinants of health. We've all heard that term. That's really where these disparities have their roots.

And so, you can't just address what's happening in a clinic setting or in a hospital setting without also dealing with the social determinants of health. And then the final point is when you talk about public health, you cannot not talk about mental health. Because public health and mental health are inextricably entwined. And so, those are the four basic points that I'm going to be talking about. I sort of gave away the punch line before telling the joke. But those are the things that's on my agenda for this presentation. So, before I get into the meat of the presentation, I do just want to give a quick reminder of who ARC is and what we do.

On this slide here, you see our vision, you see our mission, you see our values, and then you see our goals. And that top goal right there is healthy, safe, livable communities. That's why I'm here. That's why ARC recently held a public health summit to help our local governments sort of start thinking through some of the big challenges of our day, because health and public health is one of the critical issues facing the region, really, facing any region. So, let's get into it. On this slide what you're looking at is, you're looking at white population and black populations across five key indicators of health. Infant mortality, asthma, diabetes, major cardiovascular diseases, and premature death. And I'm not going to read the statistics for you, you can see the vast disparities that exist.

So, you'll look at infant mortality, it's up almost three times a higher rate for black populations than it is for white populations. And this exists for ER visits for asthma, ER visits for diabetes, ER visits for any major cardiovascular diseases. And it also extends to years of potential life loss, which is just a measure of premature death. And so, these are the disparities we have in our healthcare system that's producing these sorts of outcomes. Now, if we extend this kind of analysis to other races and ethnicities, we get this chart. And so, this chart will take a little bit of explaining because there's a bunch of colors and a bunch of numbers going on. But what you're looking at is, you're looking at the leading causes of death across the 11-county area. And the rate, 1 through 15 for black populations. So, you'll see that first column, black population, you'll see numbers 1 through 15. Those are the leading causes of death for black populations.

Now, what I've appended to this is the same leading causes of death, but looking at the Asian populations, Hispanic populations, and white population. Now, the reason I made this chart is if you look very carefully, you'll start seeing what I meant by my first point, is that we're having very different experiences in interacting with the healthcare in this region, and we have very different needs. So let me spend a little bit of time walking through this chart. Now, you see the very first, the top row, ischemic heart and vascular diseases, those are heart attacks. Heart attacks

don't care what race or ethnicity you are, that's going to be the leading cause of death, or the second leading cause of death for all races and ethnicities. But when you start diving into the details, that's when you start seeing my point. So just go on down to the second, for black population, second leading cause of death is hypertension. But that's not even the top five for any other race or ethnicity. Then you keep scrolling down in the black population column and you'll see number 8 is assault and homicide. So, homicide is the eighth leading cause of death for black population. It's not even in the top ten for other races and ethnicities.

Now, let's move across the table. Let's look at Hispanic populations. The number one leading cause of death for Hispanic population, during this five-year period, 2017 to 2021, is Covid. We only had COVID for two of those years. So, this particular disease hit Hispanic population very, very hard. Keep scrolling down in the Hispanic population, you'll see the third leading cause of death is motor vehicle crashes. And then look at the white populations, the number 2 leading cause of death among white populations is Alzheimer's disease. Number 4 leading cause is other diseases of the nervous system like Parkinson's. So, all of this is to say that, depending on your race and ethnicity, you have different health challenges, and you have different health needs coming out of the healthcare system.

So, let's move on a little bit and let's talk more about just the disparities among black and white populations. Here, you're just looking at age adjusted death rate. And you'll see for most counties, it's about even for white and black populations. The two biggest exceptions are Fulton County and Dekalb County, where you see the greatest disparity. In other words, black populations have a higher age adjusted death rate than do white populations, by a pretty far margin in both Fulton and DeKalb. Now, this is just hospitalizations, so just view this as just the rate of hospitalization. Again, you'll see in many of our counties, you see parity between white and black populations, but that's not the case again in Fulton or DeKalb, when we see big disparities. Black populations are extremely more likely to utilize a hospital for any reason. Diabetes, we mentioned this at the very beginning. This is where disparities are among the greatest. And, again, among the greatest in Fulton and DeKalb. And so, these -- so, what I've been talking about so far is just really illustrating the disparities that exist in the outcomes and how healthy we are.

But those disparities extend beyond just what we visibly see from health outcomes. Now, let's talk a little bit about access. And so, here when you think about access, well, if you want to get healthcare that you need, having health insurance helps that. And so, you'll see spatially, county by county, you see vast disparities in the uninsured rate. Clayton County has the highest uninsured rate in the region, at around 18.3. Its next-door neighbor, Fayette, has the lowest of about 7. So more than twice the uninsured rate in Clayton when compared to its next-door neighbor. And, of course, if you look at this by race and ethnicity, about 1 in 3 of our Hispanic residents in this region do not have health insurance. And the uninsured rate for black populations is almost twice that of white populations. So, again, we're seeing some of these disparities in access.

And now, we add kind of the spatial component to this, and you'll see that these disparities exist at the spatial level too. Now, of course, place and race are related. But what you'll see here is those red areas in the region, those represent the greatest concentration of those without health

insurance. And if you look at the spatial pattern, this is a very familiar spatial pattern in this region. We kinda start up in the Marietta area in Cobb. You go down through Atlanta, South Fulton, yes, College Park into Clayton County, back up to south DeKalb, back into Norcross, kind of forms a U-shape. So just remember, so sort of take a picture of that spatial pattern. Now, one of biggest of barriers to accessing the healthcare that you need is transportation. And so, this is looking at the percent of households that do not have a vehicle. Again, red areas represent the highest concentration. And, again, you see a very familiar spatial pattern; right? You see that U-shape. Now, one of the solutions or potential solutions to transportation as a barrier to healthcare is telemedicine. But to access telemedicine, you need broadband internet. And so, here the red areas represent lack of broadband access, the highest concentration of households without broadband access. And you see the exact same pattern. Then, finally, poverty, which is probably the number one indicator of access, because this is just telling you about access to just resources, in general.

And, again, you'll see the red areas represent the highest rate of poverty. And I'm doing all this to say, yes, place matters, but when you see maps like this, regardless of whether you're mapping access to vehicle, access to healthcare, access to broadband, or access to resources, and you see the map looking the same over and over and over again, guess what, College Park is in that U-shape. This talks about a system issue. And that's why at the very beginning, I said that we need to think very broadly about public health because a lot of what makes us healthy doesn't have much to do with what happens inside a doctor's office or inside a hospital.

 Now, let's talk about access a little bit more directly. And this is just access to our trauma I and trauma II hospitals in the region. We only have four of them now with AMC closure. And you'll see the blue areas represent, I guess, the quickest drive times. And the yellow areas represent the slowest drive times to one of these hospitals. Now, the map on the left just shows you average across the entire day. The map on the right actually shows you the travel time in P.M. peak. And so, you'll see that footprint, that blue fingerprint on the right map is a lot smaller, because don't get sick during P.M. peek, because your drive times become significantly longer. You'll see some areas in like southern Henry, southern Fayette, southern Clayton, where drive times are upwards of an hour. And here, we're just talking about a one-way drive from a house there to a hospital, more than likely, Grady. It's not talking about response times and ambulances. And it's not talking about the wall times you may have to wait once you get to the emergency room. This is just a; how long does it take to get from point A to a hospital.

And that little area in southern Henry, it's actually quicker for someone in that area to go to Macon to a Trauma I, Trauma II hospital than it is to go here. So, transportation is a big part of the overall healthcare system. Now, I'm going to kind of linger on this chart a little bit, because this sort of encompasses all of the four points that I led this presentation on. And what this is looking at, it's looking at premature death, so it's a little bit different than the first chart I showed you that's just looking at overall leading causes of death overall. This is looking at what gets us early. And we're looking at white populations and we're looking at black populations. And so, you'll see the chart to the left, that's for white populations. And what we're looking at is we're looking at years and we're looking at percentages of death by cause.

Now if you look at white population chart, you'll see the number one leading cause of premature

death is accidental poisoning, which is just another word for OD, overdose. Now, look at the 30, like 30 to 39. So, if you go over and you look at -- let's look at 30 to 34 specifically, you'll see that 50 percent of all death of that age group, among the white population, is attributed to OD.

COUNCILMAN CARN: Are you on the bottom or on the side numbers?

MR. CARNATHAN: The side. So, age and years. And look at the 30 to 34- and then follow that pink blob over, and that represents about 50 percent of the deaths of 30 to 34-year-old white populations are due to overdoses. Now, from this chart, skip on over to that green block, number two cause of premature death among white population and that is suicide. And so, if you kind of follow the 30- to 34-year-olds across that green blob, that's another 20 percent. So, what this chart is suggesting is that 70 percent of white population, age 30 to 34, they're dying due to OD's and they're dying due to suicides. Which gets to that final point that I made at the very beginning; mental health is a big part of public health. You really can't talk about one without the other.

Now, let's skip over to black populations, same deal, right. So, you have the age on the Y-axis on the vertical axis and you have the percent of deaths by cause on the bottom. Number one cause of premature deaths for black population is homicide. And look at the 15 to 19 age band there. You'll see about 50 percent of all deaths among black, 15- to 19-year-olds, occur due to homicide. And then you skip over to kind of that blue blob at the end, those are motor vehicle crashes. That's about another 25 percent of deaths. So, for 15- to 19-year-old black populations, 75 percent of deaths are caused due to homicide or motor vehicle crashes. And that brings in Public Safety into the mesh. You must have partnerships with Public Safety if you're going to tackle the bigger broader issue of public health.

So, does that make sense in terms how to read this chart? You should have this presentation, so hopefully, you can spend some time with this. Because you'll find out a lot of the stuff, and that's really what it boils down to when I said at the very beginning is like, we have very different experiences in this region based on our race and how we interact with healthcare system. So, I want to finish this up very quickly. Just to, you know, kind of put in a plug for what, you know, kind of ARC's main sort of forward-facing division for this is our aging independent services. They mostly deal with older adults. But they have is their north star, is their number one goal is to reduce disparities and life expectancy and increase life expectancy for all. Because, again, that is part of this broader system. Now, the reason they have a focus on older adults is because we're all getting older. The Atlanta region is going to have, you know, somewhere around 900,000 people 75 years and older in this region by 25th.

And so, you know, yes, we can celebrate greater longevity, but that greater longevity is not enjoyed by everyone equally. So, let's take a look at life expectancy. And so, here's a map of life expectancy, where you see the blues represent the highest life expectancy in the region and the red represent the lowest. Now, the two little areas that we've highlighted here represent Smyrna in Cobb County, which has the highest life expectancy in the region. And then about seven miles away in Bankhead, you have the lowest life expectancy in the region and the differences somewhere around 25 years. So, we're talking about 7 miles, what happens that causes 25 years of difference in life expectancy. And it all goes back to that same point that I've been making

about disparities, about social determinants of health and about the importance of race and place in determining any sort of healthcare status we may be thinking of. And this will be my last slide. And you'll see at the Fulton County level -- you know, Fulton County actually performs better than the state and the nation as a whole in terms of life expectancy. But the devil's in the details, right. We have to get down in the neighborhood level. We have to see those disparities that exist at place.

Again, same point that I just made. And I'll stop on this slide going back to that idea that, you know, most of what makes us healthy happens outside of clinical care. Now, based on this health model, they say about 20 percent of what drives our health outcomes and drives our quality of life happens because of what we get treated for in a clinic. That means 80 percent is something else. 80 percent is healthy behaviors. 80 percent is, you know -- so 30 percent is healthy behaviors, 40 percent are social economic factors. And then another 10 percent is just a physical environment. And so, if we're going to craft, again, a solution, and I sound like a broken record here, around the public health sphere, we have to think about the other 80 percent that really happens out in the community. And so, that is my last slide and I'll take any questions if I haven't burned through my time.

MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Thank you so much. We'll start with Councilman Clay.

COUNCILMAN CLAY: Well, I really like to thank you for being here, because I went through the charts. And I've had a lot of experience with charts, but I was having a tough time with the squiggly one.

MR. CARNATHAN: That's why I spent some time on that to kind of show you what you're looking at. It's a Histomap and it's created by the Department of Public Health. And it does kind of show you, you know, what different ages and different races, what health issues they're struggling with the most. So, I spent some time with it.

COUNCILMAN CLAY: Having said that, this has gotta be one of the most disturbing reports I've seen. So, I immediately -- being an engineer by training, I immediately go and say, well, okay, what's the solution? You know, what's the fix for this? And the one thing I would like to have seen in this chart is a correlation -- I mean, you can make a correlation out of race, for example, black and white, which is most of your presentation.

You can make a correlation out of that with race, right? What I'd also like to see, though, is what is the correlation with economic situation? Because my gut feeling is, and I have -- for example, College Park, I have the Housing Authority in my Ward. I'm down there every month for meetings. I know a whole bunch of the people down there. And if you were to talk to Chief Elmore, he would tell you, as he's told us many, many times that the majority, the vast majority, of our ambulance calls, our paramedic calls are to take people to the hospital that don't have insurance; that don't have a doctor, period. And I would just love to know, because I think I do know, that that is a high correlation with economic position. So, if we were to look at this thing of how we solve it -- I mean, yes, there's training, right? You can educate people to be savvier on medical conditions and so forth. But that doesn't get them insurance.

And so, where I'm coming from is, if we're looking for a solution, it would seem to me that one of the basic solutions is to improve the economic health, regardless of what race you are. But we are -- and I think you're going to find that there's a high correlation -- I can guarantee it in College Park -- between race and economic position. So, the next question is, really, in my mind, and this is the thing that drives a lot of the things I do, how do you improve the economic situation for people of another race, in this case, black race? Might be, somewhere else, it might be Hispanic. Somewhere else, it might be -- I doubt it'll be Asian, but it might be. And so, if we're trying to get this solved, do you have any recommendations? And would you agree that my correlation will probably show what I think it will show?

MR. CARNATHAN: Absolutely, your correlation will show that. I mean, that's why I put that poverty map in there, because it's going to show the same basic spatial pattern, which is nothing more than just a spatial correlation; absolutely. Income is driving all of this. And you'll see on this chart right here, social and economic factors, based on this model, from the -- it's a county health ranking model. And they say that, you know, social and economic factors represent 40 percent of what make us healthy or unhealthy. So, yes, improving overall economic status, you can expect to improve overall public health once you do that. Now, in terms of the solutions to do that, there's many ways to do that. I mean, you know, jobs are going to be -- jobs are always, you know, kind of a pathway to wealth. Homeownership is another traditional --

COUNCILMAN CLAY: Education.

MR. CARNATHAN: Education is one --

COUNCILMAN CLAY: One of the most fundamental things.

MR. CARNATHAN: Absolutely. And so, there's lots and lots of pathways to get us into a wealthier place, which, by correlation, would translate into better health outcomes.

 COUNCILMAN CLAY: The last thing -- I'm taking up too much time -- the last thing I would say is that we lost a significant -- we don't have good trauma capability in this area, on the southside, period. And we need to improve -- we need to get a hospital here, maybe it's not a Level I trauma, but that's capable of addressing the poverty situation that we have here. It's just that plain and simple, I think.

MR. CARNATHAN: Yeah, I mean the maps that I showed about the drive times shows that very clearly, that if you do have an emergency situation down here, the drive times can be --

COUNCILMAN CLAY: Not even an emergency. I mean, just getting to the doctor. Anyhow, enough said. I think you're right on target. This is something that is fundamental that we got to work on.

316 MR. CARNATHAN: Thank you, Councilman Clay.

318 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Thank you, sir. Councilman Carn?

COUNCILMAN CARN: Mike, first, thank you for coming out. We met several times at the ARC, and he gave me some other data near the beginning of the year concerning College Park.
And, City Manager, I wanted you to kind of get a feel, I guess, if you want to get a hundred-thousand-foot overview and look at College Park in terms of where we are and where we're ranking, I guess, this is a good start. The data that Mike has is amazing for all of these cities and counties. And I really think that the ARC is a seriously untapped resource. I was asked to serve on one of the boards of the ARC years ago, even before I became county commissioner, actually,

327 by Doug Hooker.

 I didn't have time to do it at the time, but very underutilized resource. I think all of our departments would be wise to get some data from them pertaining to their particular departments. He has a plethora of free information that we already paid for through our taxes and everything else that's just sitting there that can benefit how we budget, how we look at doing things. So, we need to take -- everyone needs to take a look at that free data. Ambrose touched on the big issue, I think, education and awareness, education and awareness. When I first got back into office here in 2022, at the first council meeting, one of the things I said I wanted to really take a serious look at are our disparities in our community, in particular, health disparities. I asked for funding for health initiatives in that 2022 budget. Those funds did not make it in the budget. I also asked for health initiatives in the last budget, the 2023 budget. That money did not get in there, but we put together a couple of committees and we're working towards better health outcomes with Fulton County Board of Health and some other partners.

I'm hoping we get some funds in the next budget for health issues and health solutions. All of those charts, the causes of death and all the things we're looking at, because we're so heavy multi-family apartment complexes, we're 75 percent rental, which is the highest in the region. Being 75 percent of apartment complexes, and these complexes, roughly half of our residents don't have vehicles or personal transportation. They have to do Uber, Lyft, the bus, MARTA, bike, whatever, have you. So that transportation issue is a real big issue for us. Accidents -- I got an intersection, which is Camp Creek and Herschel Road, I asked Dawn Chappell to pull stats for me because we've had so many accidents and wrecks on that intersection, and it's a flawed left turn signal that, I think, GDOT needs to just, all together, remove the option of the yellow signal, but that's a whole 'nother thing.

I asked the police department to look at the stats for the number of accidents there, because I had seen a few myself. And 64 accidents in a little over one year at one intersection. I would imagine that's probably the number one worst intersection that we have and it's -- I wouldn't say it's necessarily an easy fix, but it can be an easy fix, and it's something we need to work on. We're a hospitality city so that exacerbates some of our issues, perhaps. But I think a lot of this is about, you know, what we call affordances; what's afforded in the community. And affordances is like, you know, chairs in this council chamber affords city; it's what's available to you, affordances. We have a lot of alcohol in our community. Now, part of that is because we are a hospitality community, so we have a lot of hotels. We have 40 hotels/motels. We have restaurants.

But the issue I have are the convenient stores on the corner; the liquor stores, which by the way, City Manager, we are in violation of our Charter with liquor stores, by the way. Our Charter says we're only supposed to have two liquor stores in this city. However, we are in violation of our

Charter and we have four liquor stores in our community. So that's something I think we need to look at. I actually spoke to our judge about that at one point and asked her about it, and she said, well, you all regulate what's in your Charter and you're not obligated to issue any licenses to anyone necessarily, especially, if it says it in the Charter. Outside of that, I'd like to see us try to make some changes in some things that we can do. I saw this presentation a couple of months ago at a health conference at the Central Public Library, which I supported the funding for when we did 250-million-dollar renovation over there, which was a pretty big deal.

But when I saw this presentation, I told Mike that I think it would be good to come and give this presentation to our council so we can get a feel for a lot of what we're dealing with. Because a lot of what he's talking about is happening here. So, City Manager, I really want us to start to work on some initiatives that I think would better the quality of life for everybody. In a sense, College Park is kind of a tale of two cities. We've got one area of town that relatively does pretty well, and it's around this City Hall and the north end of town. You can go a few blocks down the road and the disparities are shockingly different. And that's something I think we need to try to equalize a little bit more. But it's going to take education and awareness, and a lot of it.

And I think part of that is our responsibility. We're not schoolteachers, but at the end of the day we want a quality of lifestyle for everybody, not just folks on the north side of town, or on this side of town, or on that side of town. It's good information. And I think it's an eye opener and I think we need to look at some of this stuff from time to time and figure out what we're going to do about it.

MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Any questions, Councilman Carn?

391 COUNCILMAN CARN: No.

393 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Allen?

COUNCILMAN ALLEN: No, I don't have any questions. I like your chart. It's interesting, the squiggly chart talks about children between the ages of 5 and 9, and there's an area where there's suicide in there.

399 MR. CARNATHAN: Fortunately, not many.

401 COUNCILMAN ALLEN: Is that from taking pills, or is that just --

MR. CARNATHAN: I'm not sure. This is how they diagnosed --

COUNCILMAN ALLEN: That floors me that that's in there. Again, my colleagues have mentioned, you know, we're a tourist destination, so in College Park, we have a lot of hotels. We have a lot of tourists. We have a lot of people eating at our restaurants. And we have a ton of people at the airport, which is primarily in College Park. So, you know, those people need a hospital, as well. So, we need to be looking at that as well. That's all I had to mention.

411 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Thank you, Councilman Allen. Councilman Gay?

413 COUNCILMAN GAY: Sir, I don't have any questions, but I apologize for not hearing you at the start, but I did read it. It's a great report.

416 MR. CARNATHAN: Thank you, sir.

MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Mr. Carnathan, thank you so much for your time. We value our relationship with ARC and everything that ARC does to support this region and, of course, the city of College Park. Have a wonderful evening.

MR. CARNATHAN: Thanks. Y'all too.

2. Discussion of the Consent Agenda.

a. Motion to approve a four way stop sign at the intersection of Hawthorne Avenue and Lee Street.

MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Moving on to the consent agenda. Any questions on Item 2(a), Councilman Clay?

COUNCILMAN CLAY: Yeah, I got answers to most of my questions on the items. But on this one, I didn't understand how there was zero cost to the city resource input part to put in the stop sign. I totally agree we need a stop sign, but I just didn't understand why it was zero.

MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Mr. Hawthorne?

438 MR. HAWTHORNE: I'm not sure where the police chief is, first of all, but what kind of cost are you expecting?

441 COUNCILMAN CLAY: I mean, it can't be much; maybe \$50, maybe a hundred dollars, maybe \$500. But it just said zero and that just surprised me. That's all.

COUNCILMAN CARN: My guess was we probably already have the signs and, I guess, it's a matter of sticking them on in the ground.

COUNCILMAN CLAY: I mean, you know, there's some labor and you got to cover the signs for thirty days and what have you. The other comment I wanted to make; we've got some real problems with our packets coming together. And in this particular packet, if you look at the pages, starting at 31, they're pretty much useless. Now, I don't need them. I mean, this is not a problem. This is just a process comment, City Manager. And in the other, you'll find out, in the regular session, you'll find that the page numbering in the packets don't line up after you've got fairly far down the road, you know. If I look at the 50th page, physically, and the document is not on packet page 50. It might be packet page 48 or 6 or whatever, just a comment. That's all I had.

457 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Any questions, Councilman Carn, on Item 2(a)?

458		
459	COUNCILMAN CARN: On the stop sign? No.	
460		
461	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Allen?	
462	COUNCII MANI ALLEN, No. 1 degli bere energiane I delle ide med al berene id	
463 464	COUNCILMAN ALLEN: No, I don't have any questions. I think it's needed, because it goes	
464 465	straight into the FAA, so you need to have a four way stop.	
466	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Gay?	
467	WITTOK MOTEET BROOM. Councilman day.	
468	COUNCILMAN GAY: No, ma'am. I don't have any questions until we get to (h).	
469		
470	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Thank you, sir. Considering that Items 2(b)(c) and (d) are all fire	
471	related; is that correct, Chief Elmore?	
472		
473	b. Motion to approve the purchase of fire personnel protective clothing utilizing	
474	Municipal Emergency Services (MES) as the City's protective clothing and	
475	turnout gear supplier at a cost of \$298,413.	
476	c. Motion to approve the purchase of Fire Department uniforms utilizing North	
477	America Fire Equipment Company (NAFECO) as the annual uniform	
478	supplier at a cost of \$44,730.	
479	d. Motion to approve the purchase of 40 SCBA (Self-Contained Breathing	
480	Apparatus) cylinder units for the fire department from MES (Municipal	
481	Emergency Services) at a cost of \$57,600.00.	
482 482	CHIEF EL MODE: Voc	
483 484	CHIEF ELMORE: Yes.	
485	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: So, we'll take those together. Any questions for Chief Elmore on	
486	Items 2(b), (c), or (d), Councilman Clay?	
487		
488	COUNCILMAN CLAY: I got all my questions answered, and I'm good.	
489		
490	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Carn?	
491		
492	COUNCILMAN CARN: Chief, what did we do with the old turn out gear? I'm just curious.	
493 494	CHIEF ELMORE: We probably get them repaired and we use them for either the	
494 495	CITELY ELMOKE. We probably get them repaired and we use them for either the	
496	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Chief, can you turn your mic up?	
497	THE TOTAL PROPERTY CHIEF, CAME YOU CAN'T YOU THE UP.	
498	CHIEF ELMORE: We use them for the new recruits that's coming in, if we're still to use them, if	
499	they haven't reached their life expectancy.	
500		
501	COUNCILMAN CARN: Stanley, can we take a quick note while I'm thinking about it again?	

- We need to get a taller microphone, flex thing. I'm sure we got that somewhere in the budget.
- But while I'm thinking about it, just somebody take that note so that it's easier for folks to talk,
- especially, tall folks. But even short folks, the mic -- if we can get it a little longer, I think that
- would solve a lot of our problems so that people can hear what's going on. If somebody can just
- write that down and get one of those in two weeks before we have our next meeting, that'd be
- 507 great. We were just talking about it up here. In my mind, meeting after meeting, I'd say to
- myself, oh, I gotta remember that I gotta remember that. So, let's remember that.

510 MR. HAWTHORNE: Just to clarify, and I'll refer this to the City Clerk. I'm not sure if that's your area of responsibility or communications?

512

513 MS. AMES: I'll take over it.

514

515 MR. HAWTHORNE: Thank you.

516

517 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Any further questions on 2 (b), (c), or (d), Councilman Carn?

518

519 COUNCILMAN CARN: Nope.

520

521 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Allen?

522

523 COUNCILMAN ALLEN: No questions.

524

525 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Gay, you're good?

526

527 COUNCILMAN GAY: Yes.

528

529 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: All right. Thank you, Chief. Item 2(e) questions for Mr. Hicks on 530 this one. Motion to approve integrated security technology pricing for card readers. Any 531 questions for Mr. Hicks, Councilman Clay?

532 533

e. Motion to approve Integrated Security Technologies pricing for card readers and access control on city owned facilities at a total cost of \$169,068.94.

534 535

536 COUNCILMAN CLAY: On 2(e)?

537

538 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Yes, sir.

539

540 COUNCILMAN CLAY: 2(b) is the SCBA equipment.

541

542 COUNCILMAN CARN: That's the fire, isn't it?

543

544 COUNCILMAN CLAY: That's the fire. You must mean 2(f) maybe?

545

MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: It's listed as 2(e) on the workshop session agenda.

548 COUNCILMAN CARN: But the packet 2(e) is the fire.

549

550 COUNCILMAN CLAY: 2(e) is fire on the packet. This is another problem, Stanley, with the packet.

552

553 MR. HAWTHORNE: Okay. We'll work on that.

554

555 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Hold on. I'll go by the packet. Give me one moment. I was going off the agenda.

557

558 COUNCILMAN CARN: The agenda is reading something, but the actual packets are reading completely different.

560

MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: I understand, but I want to make -- hold on just one second here, because I want to make sure that -- so what are (b), (c), and (d)? Give me one moment here.

563

COUNCILMAN CLAY: Take your time. I'm going to have a hard time finding it once you figure out which one it is. The item that we're here to talk about is the card reader system. But what happens is that 2(a) and 2(b) were both labeled for the four-way stop sign. So that's why there's a shift in the packet that does not correspond with the agenda itself.

568

569 COUNCILMAN CLAY: So, are we talking about the access control?

570

571 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: We are. So, are there questions for Mr. Hicks on that from 572 Integrated Security Technology?

573

574 COUNCILMAN CLAY: The only question I have, again -- this is a process issue. We have 575 statements in here that say it's a budgeted item. But what they don't say is, is it a fully budgeted 576 item? I mean, just because it's an item in the budget, they might be asking for twice as much than 577 what's actually in the budget. So as a process improvement, I'd like to see that it's stated to be 578 fully covered in the budget so we're not approving an additional amount without knowing it.

579 580

MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Understood.

581 582

583

COUNCILMAN CLAY: I got my questions answered on the access earlier. This is something sorely needed, I think. It's the old technology and it's -- some of it's worn out, I think. And some of it is just out of date, period, oh, I'm good on that.

584 585 586

MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Carn?

587

588 COUNCILMAN CARN: I don't have that agenda item in my packet at all. I have 2(e)(a) and it goes from packet page 61 to 67. And I don't have -- someone said it started at 68. I don't have anything that's 68. Now, one thing with our packets that I used to get is, we used to have them stapled together, the different items were stapled together. Now, I know at times, some of the packet are too thick to staple. Those we have the small clips, but a lot of these sectioned off pieces, now, I'm getting paper clipped too death with all these paper clips all over the place. And,

- again, I still use the paper, you know, myself. I'm just old fashioned that way. I like to see it on
- paper. But if I can get it stapled together like we used to have it and then the stuff that's too thick
- is in the little binder clip, but I'd like it that way. But I'm completely missing that all together. I
- 597 don't have that at all.

599 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Allen, do you mind sharing?

600

601 COUNCILMAN CARN: Well, at this point, I mean, if there are no real problems with it, I didn't have an issue with what I saw. It sounded just like the material that you needed, but I just like to see it all.

604

605 COUNCILMAN CLAY: The one point of confusion, Joe, was that whether the police 606 department and so forth were covered, and that is covered. I got that clarified. It's not listed 607 upfront, but it is covered.

608

609 COUNCILMAN CARN: All right.

610

611 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Allen?

612

613 COUNCILMAN ALLEN: No. We talked earlier today, so thank you very much for answering 614 all my questions.

615

616 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Gay, you still good?

617

618 COUNCILMAN GAY: I have a quick question. With the card reader, will that be different types 619 of cards for all staff or would different staff -- can one staff access all city facilities? And will it 620 be a reader on the bathrooms?

621

MR. HICKS: It won't be a reader on the bathrooms, no.

623

624 COUNCILMAN GAY: The parks?

625

626 MR. HICKS: To the parks, no.

627

628 COUNCILMAN GAY: Because we have a problem with staff not showing up to open the doors.

629

- 630 MR. HICKS: Well, that's something we can certainly look at, City Manager, down the road. But 631 these are for city owned buildings. It wasn't for the bathroom for the parks. We can certainly
- look at that. But it's certainly not budgeted for it. The finance director gave me specific numbers
- out of hotel/motel tax. So, if we're looking at including a bathroom, that's something I can look at
- down the road.

635

- 636 COUNCILMAN CLAY: We are looking at that for the Barrett Park. And they're intended to be a pilot for all the other restrooms, Councilman Gay. So, whatever we implement there, access
- control, we would implement at your restroom as well.

640 641	MR. HICKS: Yes.		
642	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: All right. Thank you, Mr. Hicks. Questions for the Gateway		
643	Arena portable floor rehab. Councilman Clay?		
644	Thena portuoie 11001 Tenaet. Councilman Clay.		
645			
646	f. Motion to approve Gateway Arena portable floor rehabilitation at a cost of		
647	\$25,157.50 with service work to be performed by Praters Inc.		
648	\$20,107,00 With Service Work to be performed by Truters me.		
649	COUNCILMAN CLAY: I'm good.		
650	6 6 6 1 (6 12 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
651	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Carn?		
652			
653	COUNCILMAN CARN: I guess I'm all right.		
654	2		
655	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Allen?		
656			
657	COUNCILMAN ALLEN: Are you going to redesign the floor? Is it going to have a different		
658	design?		
659			
660	MS. MILLER: No.		
661			
662	COUNCILMAN ALLEN: Okay. I'm good. Thank you.		
663	·		
664	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Gay?		
665			
666	COUNCILMAN GAY: I don't have any questions.		
667			
668	g. Motion to approve Ward 4 festival for October 14, 2023, in Phillips Park.		
669			
670	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: All right. Thank you. Any questions on Item (g) in regard to the		
671	Ward IV Festival, Councilman Clay?		
672			
673	COUNCILMAN CLAY: No.		
674			
675	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Carn?		
676			
677	COUNCILMAN CARN: No.		
678			
679	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Allen?		
680			
681	COUNCILMAN ALLEN: No.		
682			
683	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Gay?		
684			
685	COUNCILMAN GAY: No.		

686 h. Motion to approve bid from Global Environmental Services for construction 687 and build for the Barrett Park restrooms in the amount of \$348,901.30 and 688 total cost of the project in the amount of \$567,901.30. 689 690 691 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: All right. And we're on to construction of Barrett Park restrooms, the bid from Global Environmental Services for construction and build in the amount of 692 \$348,901.30, and a total cost of project in the amount of \$567,901.30. Questions for Ms. 693 Johnson, Councilman Clay? 694 695 696 COUNCILMAN CLAY: No, I've asked all my questions well before. I sure wish we hadn't had to put the new sewer line in, but that's the way it goes. 697 698 699 MS. JOHNSON: I'm surprised not to hear from you. 700 701 COUNCILMAN CLAY: But glad to see it moving along. 702 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Carn? 703 704 705 COUNCILMAN CARN: No, just things have skyrocketed up so high. I remember when we did the one in Phillips Park. Times do change. 706 707 COUNCILMAN CLAY: You betcha. 708 709 710 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Allen? 711 712 COUNCILMAN ALLEN: No questions. 713 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Gay? 714 715 COUNCILMAN GAY: No questions. 716 717 718 i. Motion to approve continuing contract with Burnett Lime Company Inc. for the chemical injection system in the amount of \$192,000. 719 720 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Thank you, sir. The next is the continuing contract -- thank you, 721 Ms. Johnson -- with Burnett Lime Company for the chemical injection system in the amount of 722 723 \$192,000. Questions for Dr. Adediran? 724 725 COUNCILMAN CLAY: No questions. We need it to keep it from eating up the pipes. 726 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Carn? 727 728 729 COUNCILMAN CARN: This is for the new pipe? 730 DR. ADEDIRAN: Yes -- no this is existing. 731

778 779 COUNCILMAN ALLEN: No. This was direly needed. Thank y'all very much, appreciate this. 780 781 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Gay? 782 783 COUNCILMAN GAY: No questions. 784 k. Motion to approve renewal of contract with The Collaborative Firm for 785 planning services at an annualized cost of \$130,000 (\$10,833 monthly) plus 786 expenses for 2023-2024. 787 788 789 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Thank you, sir. And the last one is renewal of a contract with the Collaborative Firm for planning service and an annualized cost of -- is it \$130,000, Mr. 790 Hawthorne? 791 792 793 MR. HAWTHORNE: Yes. Based on the budgeted amount, it is \$130,000 even though the 794 Collaborative Firm brought to my attention, and I shared with the council, that it's based on 20 hours per week, using the firm. This item will come back, along the restructuring that I'm going 795 to be recommending addressing this overall issue. So, yes, I'm asking for approval as the original 796 CAM stated, \$130,000. 797 798 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Thank you, sir. Questions, Councilman Clay? 799 800 801 COUNCILMAN CLAY: No questions. 802 803 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Carn? 804 805 COUNCILMAN CARN: No. 806 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Allen? 807 808 COUNCILMAN ALLEN: No, I'm good. 809 810 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Councilman Gay? 811 812 813 COUNCILMAN GAY: No. 814 MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Thank you, gentlemen. We have about 27 minutes until we start 815

816 our regular session -817

COUNCILMAN GAY: I'm sorry -- did we -- oh, when you talked about the bathroom, you were asking questions. I did have a question about the bid, not about the project. It had nothing to do with the bathroom. I had a question about -- I'm sorry. I had it in my hand. I wasn't even paying attention. The bathroom, that's a great project. I had a question about the bid. What happens when we get bids when there's such a discrepancy in the different prices? I was just looking at the three bidders. And some of the lines, there's like huge discrepancies. I'm just concerned. Are

825	
826	MS. JOHNSON: I would have to defer to purchasing, Mr. Moody, in regard to that.
827 828	COUNCILMAN GAY: This has nothing to do with the project. I have a question about bidding.
829	e e e i e i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i
830	MS. JOHNSON: I understand.
831	
832	COUNCILMAN CLAY: Could you speak up.
833	
834	MS. JOHNSON: We put the scope of work out and I know Mr. Moody sends it out via email to
835	everybody that we've got in contact wise. As far as the bid discrepancy, I'm not quite sure if I can
836	answer that.
837	
838	COUNCILMAN GAY: Well, the successful bidder is the lower bidder. But it's a huge
839	discrepancy in the other bidders. And I just want to make sure that all our successful bidders are
840	responsive. You know what I mean? Bidding so low to get it, then they going to come back with
841	some cost over runs. I think we should kind of start looking at those discrepancies.
842	
843	MS. JOHNSON: Then we looked at time wise too, how quickly the restrooms could be turned
844	around too. So, it wasn't just price but also on how quickly they can be built.
845	
846	COUNCILMAN GAY: All right. Thank you.
847	NAMED MORE THE PRODUCT A STATE OF THE STATE
848	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: Any other questions, Councilman Gay?
849	COLINCIAMAN CAN N
850	COUNCILMAN GAY: No.
851 852	MAYOR MOTI EV DROOM: All righty, Novy, we have 25 minutes. So will see everyone et
852	MAYOR MOTLEY BROOM: All righty. Now, we have 25 minutes. So will see everyone at 7:30 for the regular session.
853 854	7.50 for the regular session.
855	
856	CITY OF COLLEGE PARK
857	CITT OF COLLEGE THAN
858	
859	
860	
861	
862	Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor
863	
864	
865	ATTEST:
866	
867	
868	
869	

we doing a good job explaining what the scope is?